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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
(the "Cempany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibifity for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

+ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Directors’ report is
expected to be made avallable to us after the date of this auditor's report.

¢ Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

+ In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Page 1of 12



Deloitte
Haskins

& Sells

* When we read the Directors’ Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
as required under SA 720 'The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company‘s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related te going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to fliquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the gverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factorsin (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on June 7, 2024,

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)

b}

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not
keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of account maintained in electronic mode
in a server physically located in India (refer Note 42 to the financial statements) and not
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i{vi) below.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Saection 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b} above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmaodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in cur opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

4
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i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 41{iv) to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 41(v) to the financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year,

»
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vi.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended
March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except that:

in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain
critical tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not enabled
at the database level to log any direct data changes. During the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with, in respect of tables/records for which the audit trail feature was
enabled and operating. Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated
for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated in Note 42 to the
financial statements.

In respect of software operated by a third party software service provider for
maintaining payroll records, in the absence of an independent auditor’'s System
and Organisation Controls report covering the audit trall requirement, we are
unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled
and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software and whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been
tampered with (Refer Note 42 of the financial statements). Additionally, in
absence of the independent auditor’s System and Organisation Controls report
covering the audit trail requirement, we are unable to comment whether the audit
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

‘\“Q,-LJL !
Monisha Parikh
Partner

{Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIVUG716

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have sudited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Arjas
Modern Steel Private Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditer’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

4
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financtal controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control
with reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No. 0080725)

el v 0L~

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN: 25047840BMRIUUG7 16
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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ANNEXURE "B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred toin paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i
a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

(i)
a)

b)

In respect of property, plant and equipment

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and capital work-
in-progress,

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets,

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment and capital
work-in-progress so to cover all the items once every three years which, in ouropinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, no assets were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. Accordingly, the question of reporting on
material discrepancies noted on verification does not arise.

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Imm ovable
properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans,
are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us
from custodians.

The Com pany has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) and intangible assets during the year,

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company &
at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories {except for goods-in-transit) and stocks lying with third parties, were
physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion and based on inform ation and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. For goods in transit, the goods have been
received subsequently and the evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records.
No discrepancies of 10% ormore in the aggregate foreach class ofinventories were noticed
on such physical verification of inventories/alternate procedures performed as applicable,
when compared with the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
revised quarterly returns filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are
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i)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

{vii)
(a}

(b3

in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature ofloans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence
reporting under clause 3{iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of
accounts maintained by the Com pany pursuant to the to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of
costrecords under Section 148{1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to detemine
whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

In our opinion, the Com pany has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
on account of disputes as on March 31, 2025.

(viii} There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were sumrenderad

()
a)

ordisclosed asincome in the taxassessmentsunderthe Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 0of 1961)
during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or ¢ther
borrowings, orin the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year, exceptas
under:

Nature of | Name Amount not | Whether Number of | Remarks
borrowing | of paid on due | principal days

lender date (in Rs. | / interest | delay/unpaid

Lakh)

Term loan | Arjas 317.22 | Interest 101 | Paid on July 10,
Waorking Steel 1,322,15 101 | 2024
capital loan | Private
Working Limited 521.86 467
capital loan
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b)

€)

d)

e)

(x)
a)

b)

{xi)

b)

c)

(xii)

(i)

{xiv)

a)

b)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company has nottaken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term
laans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Orderis
not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds raised on
short term basis aggregating Rs. 20,887.95 lakh have been used for long-term purposes.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause {ix}{e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause (ix}{f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally) and hence reporting
under clause (x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12} of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed underrule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the Orderis

not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standands.
The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion the Com pany has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period up to December 2024.

{xv) In ouropinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions

4

with any of its directors or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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{xvi)

a)

b)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-I4 of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable,

In cur opinion, there is no core investment Com pany within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause (xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii} The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 2,842.01 lakh during the financial

year covered by our audit and Rs 678.75 lakh in the im mediately preceding financial year.

{xviii} There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and

{xix}

(xx)

there are no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report which is not mitigated {refernote 2.6 to the financial statements)indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during
the im mediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx} of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
{(Firms Registration No. 0080725)

T&& N
Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No. 47840)
UDIN:25047840BMRIUUG716

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2025
Ref: MP/MS/HG/RD/2025
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Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(all amounts are rupees in lakth, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 4 17,193.5% 12,706.44
{b} Right of use assets SA 11.25 1490
(<) Capital work-in-progress 4 76601 3.698.17
{d) Goodwill B6A 44715 44715
(e} Other intangible assets [51:] 1017 243
{f) Other financial assets ] 584 49 56168
(@) Income tax assets {net) 10 46.01 51.56
th} Other non-current assets 9 310.04 96741
Total non-current assets 19,868.71 18,449.74
Current assets
a) Inventories 12 8,244.43 BH¥353
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 10,820.22 10,187 .25
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 13 0.85 25872
{iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 518
(ivy Other financial assets k] 29,66 -
(¢) Other current assets 9 21360 360 00
Total current assets 19,308.81 19,484.68
Total assets 39,177.52 37.934.42
EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 15 1.500.00 1,500.00
{b} Other equity 16 (11,316.97} (7,509.32)
Total equity {9,816.97) (6,009,32)
Liabilities
Noa current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 25,913.44 8,010.16
(i) Lease liabilities 5B 870 12.28
{ili) Other financial liahilities 19 114.58 7705
{b) Provisions 20 344.38 388,52
Total non-current liabilities 26,381.10 8,488.010
Current lizbilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 17 13.471.79 2538069
{ii) Lease liabilities 58 3.58 325
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 18 a5.07 1,821.80
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 18 679179 4,01533
(iv) Other financiat liahilities 19 730.03 370787
{b) Provisions 20 20290 17279
{c} Other current liabilities 21 498,23 354.04
Total current liabilities 22,613.39 35.455.73
Total equity and liabilities 39,177.52 37,934.42
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanyina notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins 8t Sells
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration Number. 0080725]
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[Mermbership No: 047840]

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru
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Director Managi
DIN: 06738209 DIN: 07268366

Sh rishna Satyanarayan Mohanty

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
[Membershin Mo: 22035]

Date: May 19, 2025
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Arjas Modem Steel Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2025

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from aperations 22 5987633 5811010
Other income 23 26737 27714
Total income 60,143.70 59,387.24
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 24 39,664.28 3864243

Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and work-in-progress 25 {307.26) (148.71)

Employee benefits expense 26 3.004 86 253892

Finance costs 27 394015 3.690.28

Depreciation and amortization expense 28 884 60 828.96

Other expenses 29 16,827 87 15.226.39
Total expenses 64.014.50 60,779.17
Loss before tax (3,.870.80) (1,391.93)

Tax axpensa

Current tax 11 -
Deferred tax 1 = -

Total loss for the year {3,870.80) (1,391.93)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 39 6315 {95.53)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) 63.15 {95.53)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3.807.65) {1.487.46)
Earnings per equity share of INR 10 each: 30

Basic (in TNR absolute numbers) (25.81) (3.28)

Diluted fin INP absalute nurnbers) (25.81) (9.28)
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an inteqral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants CIN: U27205PB2020PTC052289

[Firm Registration Number. 0080725)

T o W
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-
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Place: Bengaluru

ar Krishnamoorthy

Chief Financial Officer

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited

DIN: 07268366

Satyanarayan Mohanty
Company Secretary
[Membership No: 22035)



Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before exceptional items and tax (3.870.80) (1,391.93)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 834.60 828.86
Finance costs 27 394015 3,690.28
Interest income on bank deposits 23 {26.97) {26.16}
[nterest income from other deposits 23 {60.60) {38.95}
Loss allowance/(reversal) on trade receivables 34.56 {29.61)
Liabilities no longer required written back 23 {15.04) {6.69}
Property, plant and equipment written off 29 45.71 -
Provision towards doubtful advances 29 18.99 -
Advance to vendors written off 29 - 35.04
Accrual/{reversal) of provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory - {108.50}
Unrealised foreign currency (gain)/loss (3.18) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 947.42 2,952.34
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables {667.53) 70.99
Inventories 429.05 279.05
Other financial assets {19.60) -
Other current assets 200.31 {149.12)
QOther hon-current assets {113.67) {117.58)
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 1,793.44 (881.18)
Provisions 49.16 65.26
Cther financial liabilities {491.68) 267.26
Other current liabilities 9367 (239.94)
Cash generated from operations 2,220.57 2,247.08
Chirect taxes {paid)/refunded [net) 5.55 17.51
Net cash flow from operating activities (&) 2,226.12 2,264.59
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (2,787.70) (217731}
{including capital work-in-progress and capital advances})
Payment received towards assets held for sale - 250,00
Deposits with banks placed (20.000 (20,00}
Interest received 19.28 56.59
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,78842) {1.890.72)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fram long term borrowings [refer (a} below] 3,607.59 =
Repayment of long term borrowings [refer (a) below] (2,750.00) {2,750.00)
Proceeds from short term borrowings [netj [refer (a) below] 2,450.00 5.000.00
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities [refer (b) below] {3.25) (272)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities [refer {b) below] {1.35) {1.50%
Interest paid (3,941.15) (2,639.04}
Net cash used in financing activities {C) 1638.16) {393.26})
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C) {1.200.46} {19.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (545.87) (526.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {1,746.33} (545.87)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 13 0.85 258.72
Loans repayable on demand from banks (overdraft facilities) 17 {1,747.18) {804.59)
Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows (1,746.33) ({545.87}

HARTERED
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Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 [Contd.]
Net debt reconciliation

{all amounts are rupees in lakh,

unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non currert borrowings 2591344 8.01016
Current maturities of non current borrowings 2,761.35 272810
Current borrowings 10,710.44 22,652.59
Lease liabilities 1228 1553
Net debt 39,397.51 33,406.38
{a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Non current Current

Particulars borrowings borrowings
Balance as at April 1, 2023 13.456.49 17.465.12
Cash inflows from short term bomowings [net) - 5,000.00
Cash inflows from overdraft facilities [net] - 18747
Cash outflows of long term borrowings {2, 750,00 -
MNon cash changes

- Unwinding of interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

({Effective interest rate methad) 31,77 =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,738.26 22,652.59
Cash inflows from short term borrowings [net] - 2,450,00
Cash inflows from overdraft facilities [net] = 93509
Cash inflows from long term borrowings 3,607.59 -
Cash outflows of long term borrowings (2,750.00)
Non cash changes

- Reclass from current to Non-current 15,348.00 (15,348.00)

- Interest accrued 1,709.04 2076

- Unwinding of interest expanse on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

(Effective interest rate method) 21.90 -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 28,674.7% 10,710.44

The current borrowings as at March 31, 2025 includes overdraft facilities disclosed as cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement, but disclosed as
borrowings in the Balance Sheet as required under Guidance Note On Division Il - Ind AS Schedule OI to the Companies Act, 2013

{b) Lease liabilities March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 1553
Non cash changes
Additions during the year - 1825
interest on lease liabilities 135 150
Cash outflow
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 3258 272
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 1.35 1.50
Closing balance [refer note 5B] 12.28 15.53

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under indirect method in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on “Statement of

Cash Flows*.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins &t Sells
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration Number: 0080725]

€ o &L

Monisha Parikh
Partner
{Membership No: 347840]

Date: May 19, 2025
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-
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Date; May 19, 2025
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Managipg Director
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Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount MNo. of shares Amount
Balance at beginning of the reporting year 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous year 1,50,00,000 1.500.00 1.50.00,000 1.500.00
Changes in equity share capital during the previous year - - - -
Balance at end of the reporting year 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00
B. Other equity Retained earnings Total
Balance at April 01, 2023 {6,021.86) (6,021.86)
Loss for the year {1,391.93) {1,391 83)
Items of other comprehensive income
- Remeasurement of the defined benafit plans (9553) {95.53)
Balance at March 31, 2024 (7,509.32) (7.509.32)
Loss for the year {3.570.80) {3.870.80)
Items of other comprehensive income
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 63.15 63.15
Balance at March 31, 2025 {11,316.97) {11,316.97}
Notes:

1. Remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognised as a part of retained eamings with separate disclosure

2. Refer note 16 for nature and purpose of reserves.

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration Number, 0080725]

T v W

Monisha Parikh
Partner
[Membership No: 047840]

Date: May 19, 2025
Placa: Bengalury

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
CIN: U27205PB2020PTC052289

Sridhar Krishnamoorthy
Directar
DIN: 06738209

Sham’é(

Chief Financial Officer

Ramaswamy Visweswaran
Managigg Director
DIN: 07268366

Satyanarayan Mohanty
Company Secretary
[Membership No; 22035)
Date: May 19, 2025

Place: Bengaluru



Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Company information

Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited was incorporated on November 12, 2020. The Company operates in the business of manufacturing of steel and steel
related products situated at Mandi Gobindgarh, Punjab, which has an installed capacity of 150,000 tons of steel per year, focused on automotive and
related industries. The Company is a private limited company domiciled in India. The address of its principal place of business and registered office is at G T
Road, Mandi, Gobindgarh, Fatehgarh Szhib, Punjab, India — 147301.

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") notified under the Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (referred to as “Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value as applicable.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value [refer accounting policy on financial instruments];

Defined benefits and other long-term employee benefits;

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently in the financial
statements.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as ™" in the relevant notes to these
financial statemnents.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [INR] unless otherwise stated, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the
Company. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals thereof,

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle,

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

Itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date, or

Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Liability

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle,

It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date, or

The Company does not have an uncenditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve monihs for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Significant areas of estimation uncertainty, critical judgement, and assumptions in applying accounting policies

While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the Company makes certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities {including contingent liabilities) at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the
reporting period. Financial reporting results rely on the estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop
exactly as forecast and the best estimates reguire adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of these financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Information about
critical judgement in applying accounting policies as well as estimates and assumptions that have significant effect to the carrying amount of assets and

liabilities are included in the accounting policies:
Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources [refer note

ER)]

Valuation of inventories and inventory obsolescence [refer note 3.5];

Depreciation and amertisation method and usefu! life of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [refer note 3.1 and 3.3;
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets [refer note 3 4]

Recognition of deferred tax assets [refer note 3.12].

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANT




Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh. unless otherwise stated)

2.6

2.7

3.2

0]
(i)
{iii)

Going Concern

The Company has incurred losses of INR 3,870.80 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,391.93 lakh] during financial year ended March 31, 2025 and as of that date,
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 3,304.58 lakh [March 31, 2024: [NR 15,971.05 lakh]. The Company also has a negative
net worth of INR 9,816.17 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 6,009.32 lakh] as at March 31, 2025. These events or conditions along with other conditions such as the
future projections of net cash outflows casts significant doubts on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company's management after considering above indicators, future business plans and future cash flow projections based on which it has carried out
an assessment of its going concemn status and believes that the Company will be able to continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future
and meet alt its liabilities as they fall due for payment.

To arrive at such judgement, the management have also considered the continued financial support from its Holding Company (Arjas Steel Private Limited),
and that the Holding Company has indicated its intention through an unconditional support letter to provide operational and financial support to the
Company as necessary to enable it to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as and when they fall due in the normal course of its business for the
foreseeable future. In addition to this, the management expects to fund its operating and capital expenditure based on its own business operations and
existing financing arrangements for the foreseeable future,

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustrents relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going
concern,

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 -
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.ef. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment [PPE] are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate
amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset. Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not
necessary to bring the item to the location and the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company.

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up 1o the date the assetis ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically
for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future econamic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net realisable value
and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of item of property, plant & equipment less their estimated residual values using straight line method over estimated
useful life {as determined below) and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets Useful life of assets
Buildings — other than factory buildings 60 years
Factory buildings 30 years
Gther buildings {including roads and temporary structures) 3-10 years
Plant and machinery (including railway sidings and electrical installations) 8-40 years
Computers 3-6 years
Furniture 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 3 years

Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e., from {up to) the date on which asset is ready to use (disposed of).

In line with the provisions of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013, the Company depreciates significant components of the main asset {which have
different useful lives as compared to the main asset) based on the individual useful life of those components. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital work-in-prograss includes direct cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the Balance Sheet date, related
incidental expenses and atiributable interest,

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether.

the contract involves the use of an identified asset

the Company has substantially al! of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the peried of the lease and

the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease




Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

3.3
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3.6

3.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price including
irrecoverable duties and taxes and any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company.

[ntangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful economic fife and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at each year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives and impairment loss is recegnised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Estimated lives for current and comparative periods in relation to application of straight-line method of amortisation.

Assets Useful life of asset

Software 5 years
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized
in Staterent of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Carrying amount of tangible and intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount is the higher of an assat's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. When there is an indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no
longer exists or may have decreased, the carrying value of the asset is increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased
carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
considered. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
independent of the cash inflows from other assets {cash-generating units). Non- financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw
materials, and stores and spares are determined on a weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress, semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes direct matenials, labour,
freight inwards, other direct cost, a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, net of refundable duties, levies and taxes
wherever applicable. Costs of inventories alsa include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory based on weighted average. Net realisable value of work in progress is determined with reference selling prices of
related finished goods.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions are made towards slow-moving and cbsolete items based on historical experience of utilisation on a product category basis, which includes the
consideration of product lines and market conditions.

Statement of Cash Flows and cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits/(loss) before tax is adjusted for effects of transactions of a non-cash / non-
operating nature. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known arnounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Financial instruments
Initial recegnition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Assessment of business model
The Company determines the business mode! at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.
The Company's business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is
performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment, The Company takes into account all relevant
evidence available such as:
how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the Company's key
management personnel;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model} and in particular, the way in which
those risks are managed; and
how managers of the business are compensated (e.g., whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected) //:

A
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Financial Instruments [Contd.}

Salely payments of principal and interest ['SPPT'] test

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part of an existing business model or
whether they reflect a new business model. The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models
have changed since the preceding period.

For an asset to be classified and measured 2t amortised cost, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that meets the SPPI test on the principal
outstanding. For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair valus of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the
life of the financial asset. Interast consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in
which the financial asset is denominated. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet the definition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

Contingent events that would change the amount of timing of cash flows;

Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
Prepayments and extension feature and;

Terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g., non-recourse features}

Financial assets; Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is classified as FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCL The company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in OCL
There is no recycling of the amount from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of the instrument However the Company may transfer
cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOC], Ts classified as at FVTPL The financial assets
will be fair valued and fair value changes will go to profit and loss. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FYTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting/ misrmatch that otherwise would arise.

Financial assets: Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e., removed from
the Cornpany's Balance Sheet) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or

b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.
Impairment of financiaf assets

In accordance with [nd AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on finandial
assets.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (.2, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events
that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased, and probability weighted amounts
determined by a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on
its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are updated. For financial assets other than trade receivables, if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used.

Financial assets that are debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, €.9., loans, deposits and bank balances. The gross carrying amount of financial
assets are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the entire financial asset or a portion thereof. The financial assets
written off are still subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Trade receivables
The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing
component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified at FYTPL if it Is classified
as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and nét gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
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Financial Instruments [Contd.)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate [EIR] method.
Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Financial liabilities: Derecognition

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheat date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a fliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
foltows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign exchange gain and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs cansist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

The Company shall cease capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Staternent of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets

Provisions in respect of foss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. [f it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period if the effect of time value of money is material. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its
present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring and has raised a wvalid
expectation in those affected that the Company will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those
affected by it. The measuremnent of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the case of:
a present obligatian arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will e required to settle the obligation;

a present obligation arising from the past events when no reliable estimate is possible;

a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company. AT
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets [Contd.]

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recagnised in the period in which the change occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related
services are rendered. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as z result of past service provided by the employee and obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a qualified independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reparting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future cantribution to the plan.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurernent gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised at amount net of taxes in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

When benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or 1oss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs,

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards provident and pension fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which service is
provided by employee. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations [compensated absences]

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The chligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet of the Company as Company does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlemnent for at least 12 months after reporting date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair valug
of the consideration received or receivable {after including fair value allocations related to multiple deliverables and/or linked arrangements) net of returns,
Goods and Services tax, applicable discounts, refunds, rebates, allowances and charge backs or other similar items in a contract when they are highly
probable to be provided.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer.

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export
sales, which the Company has determined is when physical possession, legal title and risks and rewards of ownership of the products transfer to the
customer and the Company is entitled to payment. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on individual terms of the sales
agreements.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinct -
i.e., if a product or senvice is separately identfiable from other items in the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated
between separate products and services in the arrangement based on their selling prices. Revenue from sale of by products are included in revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. [f the Company performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
[ the custormer, a contract

d as revenue when the

igility is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract lia _&l{p‘
M any performs under the contract. o
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Revenue recognition [Contd.]

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments and bank deposits is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When

calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering ali the contractual terms of the financial instrument

{for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carmying amount of the asset {when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to

the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent fo initial recognition, interest income is

calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of

interest income raverts to the gross basis.

Dividend incorne

Dividends are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income tax

Income tax consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax

Tax on income for the current pericd is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions
of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals,

Current tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

The current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and it is intended to realise the
asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax iosses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent there is convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary
differances, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax [osses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The termporary differences in refation to right of use assets and lease liability for specific leases are regarded as a net package for the purpose of
recognising deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if:

a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current incorme tax liabilities and;

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,

Eamings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 - “Earnings Per Share®. Basic earnings per
share is calculated by dividing the net profit and loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of alt potential equity shares.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the fransactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs, if any, are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / {|osses).

Foreign exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary items, such as borrowings, solely relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are
adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets, In all other cases, the Company recognises such differences in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the foreign currency at the exchange rate of the
reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of he d cost of terminating the
caplract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Com any— :
associated.
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Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]
{all amounts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

7 Trade receivables As at
[carried at amortised cost unless otherwise stated] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables - Unsecured, considered good 10,854.80 10,199.81
Trade receivables - Credit impaired - 5.62
10,854.80 10,205.43
Allowance for expected credit loss {34.58) {18.18)
10.820.22 10,187.25

Trade receivables have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 17.
The Company does not have any debts due by directors, other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due
by firns or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or 3 member.

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the year {18.18) (55.44)
Loss (allowance)/reversal on trade receivables (34.56) 2961
Utilisation of allowance 18.16 7.65
Balance at end of the year (34.58) {18.18)

The Company's exposure to credit risk and currency risk and loss allowance related to trade receivable are disclosed in note 32.
There are no disputed trade receivables as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
Ageing as at March 31, 2025

Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Notdue  Lessthané 6 months to 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
months year years

Undisputed trade recelvables

- considered good 6,498.42 433136 2493 0.09 - = 10,854.80

— credit impaired - - - - - = -
Total 6,.498.42 4,331.36 24.93 0.09 - - 10,854.80
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (34.58)
Total 10,820.22

Ageing as at March 31, 2024

Cutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months to 1 5 2.3 More than 3 Total
months year 1-2 years -oyears years
Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 647599 360262 39.53 81.67 = = 10,199.81
— credit impaired - : 077 485 ; - £ 62
Total 6,473.99 3.602.62 40.30 86.52 - - 10,205.43
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss {18.18)
Total 10.187.25
8 Other financlal assets Non current Current
[carried at amortised cost uhless otherwise stated) As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity [refer note (i) below] 573.09 56168 2146 -
Security deposits 1140 . §.20 -
$84.49 561.68 29.66 -

(i) Bank deposits including accrued interest have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 17
amounting to INR 553.02 lakh [March 373, 2024: INR 546.63.00 lakh] and deposits amounting to INR 41.53 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 15.05 lakh] are in lien against
bank guarantees.

9 Other current and non current assets Non current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 2908 287.82 - .
Electricity deposit 755.55 643,62 46.77 68.60
Advances to parties other than related parties
Advances to suppliers - 2 4597 183.07
Advances to employees - - 16.20 11.98
Balances with government authorities 16.47 16.47 1035 10.28
Prepaid expenses 894 14.50 94.31 86.07
810.04 967.41 213.60 360.00
Unsecured, considered doubtful -
Advances 12.30 - 669
Less: Provision for doubtful advances {12.300 - 6.69)
810.04 967.41 213.60 360.00

Current assets have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 17. / TE F%
o= -

/ £

CHARTERED
AGGUUNTANT




Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]
{all amounts are rupees n lakh, unless otherwise stated)

10 Income tax assets (net) As at
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
Tax deducted at source receivable 46.01 5156
46.01 51.56
11 Deferred tax assets (net) As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax asset
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss as per income tax [refer (i) below] - -
Provisions and others 369.19 11.66
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 12.08 6.35
38127 18.01
Deferred tax liability
Property. plant & equipment
idifference between camying value as per books of account and written down value as per income tax] 35013 =
Right of use assets 393 5.20
Borrowings (application of effective interest rate method) 5.15 1281
Remeasurement of employee benefit expenses (items of OCI) 22.06 =
38127 18.01
MNet deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) - -

() This is restricted to the extent of deferred tax liabilities because of lack of convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
unabsorbed depreciation or unused tax losses can be utilised by the Company.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
Significant compornents of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Recognised/
reversed through
. . As at As at
Deferred tax balance in relation to March 31, 2024 Statement of March 31, 2025
Profit and Loss or
oc1
Property, plant and equipment - {350.13} {350.13)
Borrowings (application of effective interest rate method) {12.81) 7.66 (5.15)
Right of use assets (5.20) 1.27 (3.93)
Remeasurement of employee benefit expenses [items of OCI) - (22.06) (22.06)
Carried forward business loss/unabsorbed depreciation - - -
Pravisions and others 11.66 357.53 369.19
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 6.35 573 12.08
Total - - -
Recognised/
reversed through
As at As at
Deferred tax balance in relation to Statement of
March 31, 2023 Profit and Loss or March 31, 2024
oct
Borrowings (application of effective interest rate method) {23.91) 11.10 (1281}
Right of use assets - (5.20) (5.20)
Remeasurement of employee benefit expenses [items of OCI) (0.87) 0.87 -
Carried forward business loss/unabscrbed depreciation = - =
Provisions and others - 11.66 11.66
ECL on trade receivables and other financial assets 1937 {13.02} 6.35
Written down value of inventory 541 (5471) -
Total ;i s 5
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows:
Expiry date Expiry date
March 31, 2025, [Financial year] Warch Sil;1202% [Financial year]
[. Businass losses which expires 23.76 2028-29 23.76 2028-2%
153.57 202%-30 153.57 2029-30
3,480.25 2030-31 3,480.25 2030-31
158.78 2031-32 32998 2031-32
3,002.13 2032-33 =
il Unabsorbed depreciation 4,306.98 2,355.00
[this will not expire under [ndian tax laws]
11,125.52 6,342.56

Income tax in Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income is nil. Reconciliation of effective tax rate is as below
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit before tax (3.870.80) {1,391.93}
Enacted tax rate in India 34.894% 34.94%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate (1,352.61) {486.40)
Deductible expenses where deferred tax asset is not recagnised 1.325.30 37312
Other non-deductible expenses 27.31 14.22

- 99.06

Other temporary differences
Current tax expense for the year




Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

{all amounts are rupees in lakh, uniess otherwise stated)

12

Inventories As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials 111145 1,516.32
Waork-in-progress 1.013.59 866.40
Finished goods {including goods-in-transit amounting to INR 570.00 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 670.30 lakh]) 4,186.24 391743
Semi finished goods 821.14 929.88
Stores and spares 1,112.06 1,443.50
Total inventories (valued at tower of cost and net realisable value) 8,244.48 8,673.53

{i} Inventories have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the terms relating to which have been described in note 17.

{ii) value of inventories above is stated after provisions INR 276.35 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 189.51 lakh] for slow moving and obsolete items and INR Nil [March 31,
2024: INR 77.51 lakh] for written down value of inventories. The movement of prowision are included in cost of materials consumed and changes in inventories of
finished goods, work-in-progress and semi finished goods respectively.

13 Cash and cash equivalents As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 0.85 0.84
Balances with banks
On current accounts - 25788
0.85 258.72
There are no restriction with regard to cash and cash eguivalents as at the end of reporting period.
14 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months from the reporting date - 5.18
- 5.18
Bank deposits including accrued interest amounting to Nil [March 31, 2024: INR 5.18 lakh] are in lien against bank guarantees.
15 Equity share capital As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorised share capital :

2,00,00,000 [March 31, 2024: 2,00,00,000] equity shares of INR 10/- each 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued and subscribed and fully paid up capital comprises :
1,50,00,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,50,00,000] equity shares of INR 10/- each, fully paid 1,500.00 1,500.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,500.00 1,500.00
a. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding:
As at
Equity shares March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
MNo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at beginning of the year 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1.50,00,000 1,500.00
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at end of the year 1.50.00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1.500.00

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividends,
when declared, are paid in Indian Rupees. The distribution of dividend (f any} is in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

In the event of liquidation, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst
the members, the whoie or any part of the assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not.

. Details of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at

Name of the shareholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of holding Mo, of shares % of holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Arjas Steel Private Limited [the Holding Company] 1,49,99,999 100.00% 1.49,99,899 100.00%

d. No shares have been allotted without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares, during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporting date. Further there are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.

a. Detalls of equity shares held by promoter

March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Promoter name No of shares % of total shares % change during No of shares % of total shares % change during
the year the year
Arjas Steel Private Limited [the Holding 1,49,99,999 100.00% 1,49,99,959 )

Company]




Arjas Modem 5teel Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2625 [Contd.]

{all ts are rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
16 Other equity As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings {11,316.97) {7,509.32)
{11.316.97) {7.509.32)

Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of the year (7,509.32) {6,021.86)
Loss for the year (3,870.80) {1,391.93)
Remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit plans 63.15 {95.53)
Balance at end of the year . {11,316.97) {7.509.32)
Total other equity {11,316.97) {7.509.32)

Nature of reserves

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date [including amounts recognised in OCI), less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholders. Retsined earnings are free reserve available to the Company.

17

Borrowings

MNon current Current

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Secured at amortised cost:
Loans from other than related parties:
Term loans [refer note {a) below]
Working capital demand loan [refer note {b) below]
Loans repayable on demand from banks (overdraft faciities) [refer note (b) below]
Unsecured at amortised cost:
Term loans from related parties:
Arjas Steel Private Limited [refer note (d) below]
Other loans from related parties:
Arjas Steel Private Limited [refer note {d} below]

a) The details of security and repayment of secured term loans are as follows:

1,841.11 4,579.00 2,761.35 272810
= = 8,963.26 €,500.00
- - 1,747.18 804,59

372761 343116 - -
20.344.72 = - 15,348.00
25,913.44 8,010.16 13.,471.79 25.380.69

Security

Interest and repayment terms

ICICI Bank Limited

i} First pari passu charge on all the immovable and movable properties.

ii} Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

iii} Charge on debt service reserve account [DSRA] or lien over interest bearing fixed
deposits.

iv) Borrower to maintain minimum security cover of 1.25x throughout the tenure of the
facility.

v) Non-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by Holding
Company.

vi} Non disposal/repayment of INR 1,600 lakh taken from Holding Company.

vil) Corporate guarantee from Holding Company.

iy Term foan of INR 1,312.50 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 2,187.50 lakh] is
repayable in 6 quarterdy instalments of INR 218.75 lakh from Jun'2025 to
Sep'2026

i) Term loan of [NR 1,093.75 lakh [March 37, 2024; INR 1,718.75 lakh] is
repayable in 7 quarterly instalments of INR 156.25 lakh from May2025 to
Nay'2026

iii) Rate of interest on all loans are MCLR-1Y+5pread ranging 9.65% - 9.75%
per annum [March 31, 2024: 9.05% - 9.75% per annum]

iv] The closing balance of the borrowings is net of unamortised cost of INR
7.82 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 20.24 iakh) and interest accrued of INR 1.93
lakh [March 31, 2024 Nil]

HDFC Bank Limited

i} First pari passu charge on all the immaovable and movable properties.

ii) Second pari-passu charge over present and future current assets.

it Charge on DSRA or lien over interest bearing fixed depaosits.

iv} Borrower to maintain minimum security cover of 1.25x throughout the tenure of the
facility.

v) Nen-disposable undertaking to the extent of controlling stake held by Holding
Company,

vi} Non disposal/repayment of INR 2,330 lakh taken from Holding Company.

vil) Corporate guarantee from Holding Company.

i} Term loan of [NR 2,187.50 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 2.437.50 lakh) is
repayable in 7 quarterly instalments of INR 312.50 lakh from Jun'2025 to
Dec'2026.

/i) Rate of interest on all loans are 3 MCLR+100 bps ranging 10.15% -
10.30% per annum [March 31, 2024: 9.50% - 10.15% per annum)]

iii) The closing balance of the borrowings is net of unamortised cost of INR
6.92 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 16.41 Jakh] and interest accrued of INR 21.52
lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil].

b) The Company has the following working capital facilities from:

{iy KCICI Bank Limited - INR 7,450.00 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 5,000.00 lakh); interest rate 1-MCLR 6M+0.70% ranging 8.75% to 9.00% per annum [March 31,
2024: interest rate 1-MCLR 6M+0.70% i.e, 9.00% per annum] and accrued interest of [NR 1.79 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil].

{ii} HDFC Bank Limited - INR 1,500.00 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,500.00 lakh); interest rate 3M MCLR+100 bps ranging 2.00% to 9.32% per annum [March 31,
2024: 3M MCLR+100 bps ranging 8.76% to 9.32% per annum) reset quartery and accrued interest of INR 11.47 lakh [March 31, 2024 Nil].

(iii) Overdraft facility from HDFC Bank Limited - INR 899.55 takh [March 31, 2024; INR 804.59 |akh]; interest rate 3M MCLR+100 bps ranging 9.00% to 9.32% per
annum [March 31, 2024: 3M MCLR+100 bps ranging 8.76% to 9.32% per annum] reset quarterly and accrued interest of INR 7.50 lakh [March 21, 2024: Nill.

{iv) Overdraft facility from ICICI Bank Limited - INR 840.13 lakh [March 31, 2024. INR Nil] {interest rate 1-MCLR 6M+0.70% ranging 8.75% to 9.00% per annum]
The above facilities are secured by first pari passu charge on current assets, second pari passu charge on plant & machinery and corporate guarantee from Holding

Company.

) The Company has not defaulted on repayment of principal and payment of interest to financial institutions on any of the above horrowings during the year.




Arjas Modern Steel Private Limited
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17 Borrowings [Contd.]

d} During the year [NR 3,607.58 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,500.00 lakh] was borrowed from Arjas Steel Private Limited. The interest and repayment terms of the
outstanding are as below:

{i) INR 18,855.58 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 15,348.00 |akh) bearing interest rate ranging from 9.00% - 9.32% per annum [March 31, 2024: £.76% - 9.32% per annum)]
reset as per interest rate of working capital (oans availed by the Company repayable on or before March 31, 2037, The accrued interest net of withholding taxes for
this loan is INR 1,389.14 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil).

{ii) INR 3,431.16 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 3,431.16 lakh] bearing interest rate of 9.60% per annum [March 31, 2024: 9.15% - 9.60%] reset as per interast rate of loans
availed by the Holding Company from its lenders repayable on or before March 31, 2031. However, by mutual agreement the parties can change the repayment
terms subject to the restriction given in the borrowing agreements with ICICI Bank Limited and HDFC Bank Limited mentioned abave. The accrued interest net of
withholding taxes for this loan is INR 296.45 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil).

@) On February 6, 2025, the Company has obtained approval for deferment for payment of interest to March 31, 2026 relating to the loans availed from Holding
Company.

f} The quarterly returns or statements filed (as revised wherever applicable) by the Company for working capital limits with such banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.
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Trade payables As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 915.07 1,821.80
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,791.79 401533
7.706.86 5,837.13

{i) Ageing as at March 31, 2025

Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months to 1 1-2 2.3 More than 3 Total
months year years years years
Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Disputed dues - - - - - -
- Undisputed dues 813.77 301.30 - x - - 915.07

Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
= Disputed dues - - - - -
= Undisputed dues 3,630.03 2.998.31 144.41 1.75 8.97 8.32 6,791.7%

Total 4,243.80 3.299.61 144.41 1.78 8.97 8.32 7,706.86

(i) Ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than & 6 months to 1 1-2 years 2.3 vears More than 3 Total
months year ye ye years

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Disputed dues - - = - - -
- Undisputed dues 1.621.13 188.26 - 12.41 - - 1,821.80
Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Disputed dues - - = - - -
- Undisputed dues 2,270.89 1,713.46 1.26 21.40 8.32 - 4,015.33

Total 3.892.02 1,901.72 1.26 33.81 8.32 - 5.837.13

(ill) Disclosures under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act)”.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on
information received and available with the Company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{a) the amount remaining unpaid to MSMED suppliers as at the end of the year;
principal™ 916.91 1,609.39
interest due thereon 2.28 1241
{b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the - =
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year;

(c} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has been paid but beyond the 50.87 8.90
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);

{d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year; 65.56 1247
{e) amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - 284

above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23
of MSMED Act, 2006

* Includes dues of micro, small and medium enterprises included within other financial liabilities in note 19
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19 Other financial liabilities Non current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Guarantee commission payable [refer note 34) - - 565.20 250.24
Employee payable < - 367.56
Interest accrued = % 2,206.54
Creditors for capital goods

- Dues to micro and small enterprises E = 1.54 -

- Dues to other than micro and small enterprises - - 119.19 699.25
Retention money payable 114.58 77.05 43,80 60.16
Reimbursement of expenses to Holding Company [refer note 34| 3 - = 124.12

114.58 77.05 730.03 3.707.87
20 Provisions Non current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefits

Provision for gratuity [refer note 39]
Provision for leave encashment* [refer note 39]

344.38 388.52 93.02 8286
= - 104.58 83.89
344.38 388.52 202.90 172.75

*The entire amount of provision is presented current since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

However the Company does not expect all employee to avail full amount of accrued leave or require paymeant for such leave within the next 12 months.
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Other current liabilities

Advances from customers
Statutory remittances

[nterest payable to micro and small enterprises [refer note 18 (iii)]

As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
67.03 45.48
365.64 308.56
6556 -
498.23 354.04

HARTERED
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22 Revenue from operations

Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Sale of products 59,658.58 58,925.78
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives 6.63 1.06
- Others [including sale of scrap] 211.07 183.26
59,876.33 59.110.10
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
a} Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised with contracts and total revenue
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Total revenue from operations 59,876.33 59,110.10
Adjustments:
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives 6.68 1.06
Total revenue from contracts with customers 59,869.65 59,109.04
b} Product-wise revenue
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bars 57,661.53 55.523.89
Billets 13.62 175.37
ingats 1,977.03 2,820.38
Slag 5.40 6.14
Total revenue from sale of products 59,658.58 58,925.78
Others [including sale of scrap] 211.07 183.26
Total revenue from contracts with customers 59,869.65 59,109.04
¢) Geography-wise revenue
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market
Farticulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 59,310.94 59,039.55
Europe - 2513
Asia ather than India 558,71 44.36
Total revenue from contract with customers §9,869.65 59,109.04
d) Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue at a point in time 59,869.65 59,109.04
Revenue over the period - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 59,869.65 59,109.04
e) Reconciliation of gross revenue from contracts with customers
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 61,750.85 59,453.74
Less: Discounts, commission and sales returns {1,881.20) {344.70}
Total revenue from contracts with customers 59,869.65 59.109.04
f} Contract balance
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract assets - Trade receivables {refer note 7] 10,820.22 10,187.25
Contract liabilities - Advances from customers [refer note 21)
Balance at beginning of the year 45.48 213.73
Amount recognised in revenue out of opening balance {45.48) {209.02)
Amount received in advance during the year net of revenue recognised 67.03 45.48
Amount refunded to custormers - {4.71)
67.03 45.48

Balance at end of the year
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23 Other income Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income earned on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Deposits with banks 26.97 26.16
Usance letter of credit 373 13.88
Other non - operating income
Liabilities no longer required written back* 15.04 3630
Interest income on deposits 60.60 25.07
Miscellaneous income 161.03 175.73
267.37 277.14
* Liabilities no longer required written back includes ECL provision reversal of INR Nil lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 29.61 lakh] [refer note 7]
24 Cost of materials consumed Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw rmaterials
[nventory at the beginning of the year 1.516.32 259814
Add: Purchases (net} 39.259.41 37,560.61
Less: [nventory at the end of the year 1,111.45 1,516.32
Cost of raw materials consumed during the year 39,664.28 38,642.43
25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and work-in-progress Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the end of the year [including goods-in-transit, refer note 12]
Work-in-progress 1.013.59 §66.40
Semi-finished goods 821.14 929.88
Finished goods 4,186.24 3,917.43
6,020.97 5713.71
Inventories at the beginning of the year (including goods-in-transit, refer note 12]
Work-in-progress 866.40 910.13
Semi-finished goods 929.88 808.49
Finished goods 3.917.43 3,646.38
5,713.71 5,565.00
{307.26} {148.71)
26 Employee benefits expense Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,482.93 213235
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 29] 197.70 176.41
Gratuity [refer note 39) 98.73 70.44
Staff welfare expenses 225.50 160.72
3,004.86 2,539.92
27 Finance costs Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
[nterest on overdraft / other loans [refer (i) below] 245417 2,026.39
Interest on term loans [refer (i) below] 945.16 1.168.31
Interest on lease liabilities 1.35 1.50
Guarantee commission [refer note 34] 24994 250.24
Other borrowing costs 289.53 243.84
3.940.15 3.690.28

{i) Interest on other loans includes interest on loan from Holding Company amounting t0 INR 1,543.49 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 1,322.15 lakh][refer
note 34]
(it Interest on term loans includes interest on loan from Holding Company amounting to INR. 329,39 |akh [March 31, 2024: INR 317.22 lakh] [refer
note 34]
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Depreciation and amortization expenses Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 877.22 82443
Depreciation on right of use assets 3.65 335
Amortization of intangible assets 3.73 1.08

384.60 828.86

HARTERED
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29 Other expenses

Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent [refer note 33) 91.38 27.25
Repairs and maintenance - building 15.76 4572
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 765.15 65598
Repairs and maintenance - others 77.96 93.74
Insurance 63.33 55.14
Rates &t taxes 54.05 26.64
Legal and professional charges [refer (i), (i), {iv) below and note 34] 366.05 298.80
IT related services 20.04 19.17
Communication expenses 9.48 9.15
Travel and conveyance 41.41 48.30
Freight outward and forwarding charges 857.70 765.03
Security charges 78.09 70.79
Stores and spares consumed 6,124.60 5.896.57
Power and fuel 6812.57 597895
Labour charges 1,209.36 1,089.97
Payment to auditors [refer (i} and (i) below] 38.60 3071
Advance to vendors written off - 35.04

Loss allowance on trade receivables 3456 -

Provision for doubtful advances 18.99 -
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translations 2968 1.61

Property, plant and equipment written off 45.71 -
Miscellaneous expensas 73.40 77.74
16,827.87 15,226.39

{i} Details of auditors’ remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses is as bhelow Year ended

As auditor March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory audit fee 32.00 19.00

Tax audit fee 4.00 -
Certification - 1.00
Cost overrun fee - 7.00
Reimbursement of expenses ** 2.60 371
(amounts presented above excludes G5T) 38.60 30.71

* Previous year's fees pertains to erstwhile auditors,

** Reimbursernent of expenses for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 includes INR 1.52 takh paid to erstwhile auditor,
(i) Legal and other professional charges of previous year includes INR 3.00 lakh paid to erstwhile auditor for the tax audit.
{iii} Legal and other professional charges includes INR Nil [March 31, 2024: INR 18.60 lakh] paid to firm in which the partner of audit firm is a partner.
{iv} Legal and other professional charges includes amounts paid to a firm affiliated to the statutory auditors firm through a networking arrangements
as registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the year ended March 31, 2025 INR 1.50 lakh [March 31, 2024: Nil]
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Cther expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The calculation of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of

equity shareholdings for the purpose of basic EPS and diluted EPS are as follows:

Basic earnings per share :

Attributable to equity halders of the Company {in INR absclute numbers)

Diluted earnings per share :
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (in INR absolute numbers)

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share :

Basic earnings per share
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Dituted earnings per share

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Used in calculating basic EPS

Used in calculating diluted EPS

Loss used in calculating diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator :

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic

earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted eamings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares are used as the denominator in calculating

diluted earnings per share

(25.61} (9.28)
(25.81) {9.28)
(3.870.80) {1.391.93}
(3,870.80} {1,391.93)
(3.670.80} {1,391.93)
{3,870.80) {1,391.93)
1,50.00,000 1,50,00,000
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3

-

Financial instruments
Fair value hierarchy

Carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are presented below.
Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank deposits, other financial assets, trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities have fair

values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature,

Loans have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts as it is based on the net present value of the anticipated future cash flows using rates

currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,

The company does not have any financial instruments to be valued as per level 1, level 2, level 3 and accordingly the disclosure of fair value hierarchy is

not applicable.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments b

each category as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:

Carrying Valve Fair Value
Particulars Balances at Balances at Balances at
amortised cost FVTOCI FVTPL
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10,820.22 - 10,820.22
Cash and cash equivalents 0.85 ° 0.85
Other non current financial assets 534.49 - 584.49
Other current financial assets 29.66 - 29.66
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks {includes current maturities of
long term borrowings and accrued interest) 15,312.90 - - 1531290
Barrowings from related parties 24,072.33 - 2407233
MNon current lease liabilities 3.70 - - 8.70
Current lease liabilities 3.58 - - 3.58
Trade payables 7.706.86 - 7,706.86
Other financial liabilities 844.61 - 84461
The carrying value and fajr value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars Balances at Balances at Balances at
amortised cost FYTOCI FVTPL

Financial assets
Trade receivables 10,187.25 - - 10,187.25
Cash and cash equivalents 25872 = - 258.72
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5.18 - 5.18
Other non current financial assets 561.63 - - 561.68
Other current financial assets -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks {includes current maturities of
long term debt) 14,6711.69 = 14,611.69
Borrowings from related parties 1877916 - 18,779.16
Non current lease liabilities 12.28 - 12.28
Current lease liabilities 3.25 . - 3.25
Trade payables 5.837.13 - 5.837.13
Other financial liabilities 3,784.92 - 378492

32 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

1 Credit risk

2 Liquidity risk

3 Market risk

4 Commodity risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of
Directors, supported by finance, legal and compliance team, identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit team, Internal audit team undertakes reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.

-

Credit sisk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and it
arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, treasury operations and related activities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent
maximum exposure to credit risk. A financial asset is "credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred such as a breach of contract, significant financial difficulty, it is probable that debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial recrganisation. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is a/rlawsed-;ﬁgh Adyally for credit
-wur{hlness before the Companys standard payment and delivery ten'ns and condltlons are offered The Company measyrr;s‘tﬁe am 6}1 of expected

ERED
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32 Financial risk management [Contd.]
Trade and other receivables:
Management considers that the demographics of the Company's customer base, including the default risk of the industry in which customers operate,
has less of an influence on credit risk. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit
worthiness of the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of the business.
The Company uses simplified approach (i.e. lifetime expected credit loss model} for impairment of trade receivables/contract assets. The solvency of the
debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the
Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit terms.
For all other financial assets, if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used.

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Cther financial assets
There is na significant loss allowance for other financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to
credit risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 10,820.22 10,187.25
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 518
QOther non current financial assets 584.49 561.68
Other current financial assets 29.66 -

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
There is no other class of financial assets that is past due other than trade receivables [refer note 7). The ageing of trade receivables and allowances are

given below:
As at March 31, 2025
Gross carrying Weighted Loss allowance Net carrying
. amount average loss rate value
Ageing
Within the credit period 6,498.42 0.16% 10.53 6,487.89
(-1 months past due 2,748.55 0.27% 7.30 2.741.25
1-2 months past due 1.277.76 0.77% 9.87 1,267.89
2-3 months past due 215.0% 1.54% EX| 211.78
3 months and above 114.98 3.10% 3.56 111.42
Total 10,854.80 34,57 10.820.23
A< at March 31, 2024
Gross carrying Weighted Loss allowance Net carrying
Ageing amaunt average loss rate value
Wwithin the credit period 6,475.99 0.08% 497 6,471.02
0-1 months past due 274194 0.13% 358 2,738.36
1-2 months past due 697.25 0.37% 260 694.65
2-3 months past due 173.52 0.81% 1.41 172.11
3 months and abave 116.73 4.81% 5.62 111.11
Total 10,205.43 18.18 10,187.25

There are no other trade receivables which have a significant increase in the credit risk other than those reported in note 7

Concentration of trade receivables
The Company's exposiire to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
India 10,739.14 10,187.25
Cutside India 81.08 -
Total 10.820.22 10.187.25
Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company' s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 6 the Company's
reputation. The Holding Company has undertaken to provide financial support to the Company vide its letter dated May 19, 2025 for a period of at least
12 months from the date of issuance of these financial statements. Management of the Company has evaluated the capability and intent of the Holding
Company to extend the above financial assistance. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facllities and reserve
borrowing facilities. S

Based on guarantee from the Holding Company, the Company will be able to obtain bank facilities to meet its working ;:abifalj;éd}jréa
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32

3

1

Financial risk management [Contd.]
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, excluding estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be

required to pay.

g Carryi Contractual cash More than 3
Particulars An:?unng flows 0-12 Months 1-3 years yeors
As at March 31, 2025
MNon-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks {includes current maturities of
long term bomrowings and accrued interest) 4,602.46 4,617.20 277345 1,343.75 -
Borrowings from related parties 24,072.33 2407233 - 1,685.59 22,386.74
Lease liabilities 12,28 14.18 460 920 0.38
Short term facilities with bank 1071044 10,710.44 10,710.44 = -
Trade payables 7,706.86 7,706.86 7.706.86 = -
Other financizl liabilities 84461 844.61 730,03 11458
As at March 31, 2024

sclern
Borrowings from banks (includes current maturities of
long term debt) 7.307.10 7.343.75 2,750,00 4,593.75 -
Borrowings from related parties 18,779.16 18,779.16 - - 18,779.16
Lease liabilities 15.53 18.79 4.60 9.21 498
Short term facilities with bank 7.304.59 7.304.59 7,304.59 - -
Trade payables 5837.13 5.837.13 583713 = E
Other financial liabilities 3.78492 3,784.92 3,707.87 77.05 -
Market rishk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The
value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect
market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and
payables. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk {currency nisk) and interest rate risk.
a) Currency risk
The Company's exposure in USD and EUR transactions gives rise to exchange rate fluctuation risk. Company's policy in this regard incorporates
Forecasting inflows and outflows denominated in USD and EUR for a 12 month period
Estimating the net exposure in foreign currency, in terms of timing and amount
Determining the extent to which exposure should be protected through one or mare risk-mitigating instruments to maintain the permissible limits of
uncovered exposures.

Sensitivity analysis below is made on the clasing baiances as on respective reporting dates.
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars
Usp* EUR* usD* EUR*

Trade recelvables 81.08 -

Trade payables (218.20) - - =
Other current assets - - 125.10 111.98
Other financial liabilities (2.88) - (3.00) -
Net Balance Sheet exposure ] (140.00_)] - I 122.10 | 111.98

A 1% strengthening of the rupee against the respective currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have increased / (decreased) profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for previous
year.

Change in profit / (loss} and equity March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
usD* 1.40 {1.22)
EUR* - (1.12)

A 1% weakening of the rupee against the above currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect on
USD/EUR to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

* The amounts disclosed above are in the functional and presentation currency (i.e., INR lakh}
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32 Financial risk management [Contd.]

b) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in interest rates would adversely affect the borrowing costs of the Company.
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments were as follows:

Carmrying

amounts

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

I_Fixed rate instrurnents
Financial assets
- Fixed depaosits with banks

1. Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities
- Borrowings from banks (including overdrafts)

- Borrowings from related party

594.55

15,312.90
24.072.33

566.86

14,611.69

18.779.16

Cash flow sensitivity for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments-

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased/increased profit/loss by the amounts shown below. A
decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect on the amounts shown below, on the

hasis that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

100bp increase

100bp decrease

100bp increase | 100bp decrease

Profit/{loss) and equity - (Variable rate liabilities)

(363.33)

36333

{(370.48) 37048

4 Commodity price risk
The Company doesn’t enter into any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commodity price risk.

33 Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee (as per IND AS 116)

The Company has entered into lease arrangements relating to equipment. These leases are for a duration of less than twelve months or |eases of low
values. These arrangements are cancellable in nature and do not have any lock in period, accordingly future minimum lease payments are not disclosed.
Amount of INR 91.38 lakh [March 31, 2024 INR 27.25 lakh] is recorded in Staterment of Profit and Loss [refer note 29].

34

Related party disclosures

Names of refated parties and related party relationship
Name

a) Parent information

Skand Private Limited

The Sandur Manganese & Iron Cres Limited

Arjas Steel Private Limited

ADV Partners Pte Limited, Singapore

Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore

Blue Coral Investment Holdings Pte Ltd ¥ CIA SRC, Spain

b} Key management personnel
Ramaswamy Visweswaran
Sridhar Krishnamoorthy

Sham Krishna

Satyanarayan Mohanty

Transactions with related parties:

Relationship

Ultimate Holding Company from November 11, 2024
Intermediate Holding Company from November 11, 2024
immediate Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Company till November 10, 2024
Intermediary Holding Company till November 10, 2024
Intermediary Holding Company till November 10, 2024

Managing Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer from May 09, 2025
Company Secretary

The following table provides the total transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Name of related party

Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Arjas Steel Private Limited
a} Loans taken [refer note (i) below]
b} Interest expense on term loans
¢} Interest expense on lpans taken
d) Guarantee commission expense
e} Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf
) Revenue from sale of products
g) Purchases
h) Suppaort service expenses incurred on our behalf

3.60758 1,500.00
32939 317.22
1.543.49 1,322.15
249,94 250.24
= 14.39

1.90 16.50
58.14

132.76
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34 Related party disclosures [Contd.]
C Amount payable / receivable from related parties

Name of related party

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Arjas Steel Private Limited

a) Loans payable including interest [refer note (i) below]

b) Equity share capital

) Guarantee commission payable [refer note (fii) below]

d} Trade payable

e) Corporate guarantee issued by immediate Holding Company [refer note (iil) below]
f) Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf

g) Support service expenses payable incurred on our behalf

h} Trade receivable

24,072.33
1.500.00
565.20
381.28
25.000.00

224

20,9403%
1,500.00
250.24
21,79
25,000.00
124.12
132.76
11.18

(i} Outstanding balances at the period ended are unsecured and settiement occurs in cash
(i) For terms and conditions of borrowings from Holding Company, refer note 17{d)
Movement of borrawings from Holding Company

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balance at beginning of the year 20,940.39% 17.279.16
Add: Loan taken during the year 3,607.58 1,500.00
Add: Interest accrued 1,685.59 2.161.23
Less: Interest paid during the year (2,161.23) =

Balance at end of the year 24,072.33 20,940.39
Maximum loan outstanding {including accrued interest] during the year 24,072.33 18,779.16

(i) The Company obtained corporate guarantee for the amount of INR 25,000 lakh from its Holding Company towards credit facilities availed from
bankers [HDFC Bank and ICICI Bank] and valid till February 10, 2027, Commission at the rate of 1% has been charged by the Holding Company on such
guarantee provided.

35 Segment information
The Company is in the business of manufacturing special steel products having similar economic characteristics, primarily with operations in India and
regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Board of directors) for assessment of Company's performance and resource allocation.
Therefore, the Company has only one reportabie segment.
The information relating to revenue from external customers and location of non-current assets of its single reportable segment has been disclosed as

below:

a) Revenue from operations Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 59,317.62 55,0406
Europe - 251
Asia other than India 558.71 444
Total 59,876.33 59,110.10

b) Non current assets
All non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

¢) Customers contributing more than 10% of revenue
One customer is contributing more than 10% of revenue amounting to [NR 8,848.37 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 9,352.80 lakh].

36 Capital and other commitments [to the extent not provided for]

The Company has a process whereby all long term contracts are assessed for material losses. The Company did not have any long-term contracts

including derivative contracts for which there were no foreseeable |osses.
Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account

Froperty, plant and equipment 32798 1,483.38

327.98 1.483.88
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37 Capital management

Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
(i} Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

{iiy Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investors and creditors and to sustain

future development and growth of its business.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘equity”

Adjusted net debt (total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits disclosed under other non-current financial assets}
divided by

Total equity (as shown in the Balance Sheet)

The gearing ratios were as follows:

. As at
Particulars March 31,2025 ___March 31, 2024
Long term borrowings 25,913.44 8,010.16
Lease liabilities 12.28 15.53
Short term borrowings 13,471.79 25,380.69
Total borrowings 39,397.51 33,406.38
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 0.85 258.72
Bank balances cther than cash and cash equivalents = 5.18
Bank deposits disclosed under other financial assets 594.55 561.68
Net debt 38.802.11 32.580.80
Total equity (9.816.97} {6,009.32)
Net debt to equity ratio {3.95} {5.42)

Note: For the purpose of the Company's capital management, borrowings includes short term borrowings and long term borrowings [including inter company
loans] and Jease liabilities.

38 Contingent liabilities As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts * 62.60 70.35

*The above claims includes INR 13.70 lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 21.45 lakh] towards supplementary bills issued by Punjab state eleciricity board for slow meter
running. service connection charges and INR 48.90 lakh towards revision of tariff rates for the year 2014-15.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. Regarding the amounts disclosed above it is not practicable to disclose the information on
the possibility of any reimbursement as it is determinable only on occurrence of any future events,

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
Future cash flow in respect of the abowe, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decisions pending with relevant authorities. The Company does
not expect the outcome of the matters stated above to have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.

3

T-]

Employee benefit plans

(i) Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the law, all employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident and pension fund. Under defined contribution
plan, provident and pensieon are contributed to the government administrated provident fund. The Corpany has no obligation other than the contribution to
the provident and pension fund.

Amounts towards defined contribution plans have been included and recognised under “Contributions to provident and other funds® in note 26 INR 197.70
lakh [March 31, 2024: INR 176.41 lakh)

(ii} Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides graiuity, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. It entitles an employee,
who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. These defined benefit plan expose the Company to actuarial risks,
such as interest rate risk, salary escalation risk. demographic risk ete.

Risk exposure to defined benefit plans

Interest rate risk:

The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above
benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Salary escalation risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan panticipants in future. Deviation in the rate of
increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the
plan’s liability.

Demographic risk:

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability and there is a risk that these may change.

Regulatory risk:
Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amende fom hing

regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs. /,-;_j\" T,

time}. There is a risk of change in
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39 Employee benefit plans [Contd.]

Asset liability mismatching or market risk;
The duration of the fiability is longer compared to duration of assats, exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates:
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumptions, the gratuity benefits will be paid extra than evaluated. The impact of this will
depend on where benefits are vestad as at resignation date.

Balances of defined benefit plan
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 Macch 31, 2024
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligatior 44240 47138
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net lizbility arising from gratuity {442.40) {471.38)
Non current {344.38) (388.52)
Current {98.02) {82.86)

Expenses recognised for defined benefit plan and movement of liabilities
The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025. Based on the
actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial

statements as at Balance Sheet date;

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Components of expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 65.05 46.14
Interast cost 33.68 24.30
Total (A) 98.73 70.44
B. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit llability:
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in demographic assurnptions {14.76) {55.66)
-Actuarial {gains) and iosses arising from changes in financial assumptions {48.54) 157.74
-Actuarial {gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 0.15 (6.55)
Total {(B) (63.15) 95.53
C. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligaticn 471.38 33220
Current service cost 65.05 46.14
[nterest cost 33.68 2430
Remeasurement (gains)/losses;
-Actuarial {gains} and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions {14.76) {55.66)
-Actuarial {gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (48.54) 157.74
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 0.15 (6.55)
Benefits paid {64.56) (26.79)
Closing defined benefit obligation {C) 442.40 471.38
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Weighted average duration {based on discounted cashflows) 4 years 5 vears
Expected cash flows cver the next {valued on undiscounted basis): Amount in INR
1 year 98.02 82.86
2 10 5 years 283.37 27370
6 to 10 years 145,18 197.45
More than 10 vears 70.03 170.81

(i) Other long term benefits

The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Company which can be carried forward to future years. They are therefore
accrued using actuarial valuations and are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by

employees.

Expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Leave encashment 29.71 28.03
Total 29.71 28.03
Liability as at Balance Sheet date As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non current - -
Current 104.88 89.89
Total 104.88 §9.39

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions canstant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

i As at

Particulars anSKia~ March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation Gratuity (Base) /A%’ L/ N€ N\ 44240 Yo B3
. o7 7 J-_—f:l
m
oy
&=

% >

S
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As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Defined benefit Defined benefit Defined benefit Defined benefit
Particulars obligation for obligation for obligation for obligation for

decrease in % of | increasein % of | decreasein % of | increase in % of

assumption assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate {- / +1%) 461.08 (425.12} 496.42 {448.60}
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 4.22% {3.91%) 531% 4.83%)
Salary growth rate (- / +1%) {425.50} 460.28 {449.65} 494.54
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) {3.82%) 4.04% (4.61%) 491%
Attrition rate (- / +50% of attrition rates) 49224 {416.82) 553.02 {432.31)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity} 11.26% {5.78%) 17.32% {8.29%)
Martality rate (- / +10% of mortality rates) 442 45 {442.36) 471.52 471.24
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.01% {0.01%) 0.03% {0.03%)

The expected contribution for the next year taken as NIL since the scheme is managed on unfunded basis.

Principal assumptions

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars For gratuity For other long term benefits
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Discount rate 6.50% 7.15% 6.50% 7.15%

2. Salary escalation 10.00% 12.74% 10.00% 12.74%

3. Withdrawal rate 22.00% 17.57% 22.00% 17.57%

4. Retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years

{i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of obligations,
(i) The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as

supply and demand in the employment market.

{iiiy Assunmptions regarding future mortality and experience are set in accordance with published rates under Indian assured lives mortality 2012-2014.

40 Ratios
Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Variance
Current ratio Total current assets  Total current 0.85 0.55 55.38%
liabilities

{the ratic is improved due to extension of current borrowing of itercompany loan to non-current
resufting in lower current Kabilitfes]

Debt equity ratio Total debt Total equity 4.01) {5.56) {27.80%)
{the ratio 1s declined due to increased current year fosses resulting in the lower equity attributable to the
shareholders]

Debt service coverage ratio Earning for debt Debt service = 0.15 0.56 (72.37%)
service = Interest + Principal
Net profit/(loss) repayments

after taxes + Non-
cash expenses &
income + finance

fthe ratio is fower due to reduction in earnings for dabt service and increase in borrowingsj

Return on equity Net profit/{loss) for Average total equity {48.92%) {26.43%) {85.05%)
the year
[the ratio is decreased primarily due to increased fosses in the current year]

Inventory tumover ratio Cost of goods sold  Average inventory 4.65 4.39 5.87%
= Cost of materials
consumed +
Changes in
inventories of
finished goods, semi
finished goods and
work-in-progress,

Trade receivable turnover ratio Revenue from Average trade 570 579 (1.59%)
operations receivables

Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases Average trade 5.80 598 (3.11%)

payable

Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from Average working {6.21} {4.55) (36.65%}

operations capital

fthe ratio is declined due to extension of current borrowing of intercompany loan to non-current resulting

in reduction of the average working capitalj

Net profit ratio Net prafit/{loss) for

the year

{the ratic is reduced due o increased losses as compared to previous year]

Revenue from
operations

{6.46%)

(2.35%)

(174.53%)
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Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Variance
Return on capital employed {ROCE) Profit/(Joss} before  Capital employed = 0.23% 8.39% (97.21%}
tax and finance cost Networth +
Borrowings

[the ratio is reduced due to increased losses as compared to previous year]

Return on investment {Other than investments in - Income earned on Average
subsidiaries) investments investments for the
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Additional disclosures required by Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013;

(i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami

{i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iii} The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

{iv) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other parson{s} or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaranteé, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
tvi} The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

{vii} The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the companies act. 2013) or consortium thereof or
other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of [ndia.

{viii) The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the companies
act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on nurmber of Layers) Rules, 2017,

{ixy The Company has not entered into any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended March 31, 2025.

{x} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the year.
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(a) Daily back-up: The Companies (Accounts) Amendments Ruies 2022 mandates maintenance of backup of Company's books of account and other books
and papers maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India on a dally basis. The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its
books of account and has maintained back-up of such books of account on a daily basis in a server physically located in india except for certain payroll records
wherein back-up is not stored in a server physically located in India.

{b) Audit trail: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made it mandatory for companies 1o maintain an audit trail throughout the year for transactions
impacting books of account. The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that:

- in respect of one software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for certain critical tables/master records throughout the year and audit trail was not
enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. The Company is in the process of complying with the requirements of enabling the audit trail
feature as required for certain critical tables/master records for the software.

- in respect of another software operated by a third-party software service provider and used by the Company for maintaining certain payroll records, the
independent auditor's system and organisation controls reports does not cover audit trail related regorting. The Company is in process of discussing with the
third party software provider to include the audit trail related reporting in the independent auditor's system and organisation controls report.

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
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Corporate Socfal Responsibility

As per the provisions of section 135 of the Act and Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, The Company is required to spend at least 2% aof the average net
profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years on CSR. Since the Company has not made any profits during preceding three years, thus
the Company is not required to incur any expenditure under section 135 during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

The financial staternents of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by erstwhile auditors B S R & Co. LLP {Firm Registration Number:
101248W/W-100022}
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The management has evaluated subsequent events till May 19, 2025, the date at which the financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31,
2025 were authorized for issue by the company's board of directors.

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
jas Modern Steel Private Limited
CIfN: V27205PB2020PTC052289

Sridhar Krishnamoorthy
Director
IN; 06738209

Satyanarayan Mohanty

Chief Financial Officer Comnpany Secretary
[Membership No: 22035]

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bengaluru
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